
 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED 
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

 

GOVERNING BOARD SPECIAL MEETING INFORMATION 
 

Meeting Date & Time 
Thursday, January 9, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

Meeting Location 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Multipurpose Room 

at 300 Mandich Street, Bishop, CA 93514 
 

District Board 
Matt Kingsley, Inyo County, Chair 

Fred Stump, Mono County, Vice Chair 
Ron Hames, Alpine County 
John Peters, Mono County 

John Wentworth, Town of Mammoth Lakes 
David Griffith, Alpine County 

Dan Totheroh, Inyo County 
 

 
 

 
Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 

157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514 
(760) 872-8211   E-mail: pkiddoo@gbuapcd.org 



GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514‐3537 

Tel: 760‐872‐8211   www.gbuapcd.org 
 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL 
GOVERNING BOARD  

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the regular meeting of the Great Basin Unified Air 
Pollution Control District Governing Board scheduled for January 2, 2020 has been cancelled. 
 
A special meeting of the Governing Board will be held on January 9, 2020 at 10:00 am in the 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power’s Multipurpose Room at 300 Mandich Street, 
Bishop, California 93514. 

 
This notice of cancellation was posted at the District offices of the Great Basin Unified Air 
Pollution Control District, 157 Short Street, Bishop CA 93514 on December 2, 2019 as well as 
the District’s website (www.gbuapcd.org). 
 
DATE: December 2, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
Tori DeHaven 
Clerk of the Board 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 



GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514‐3537 

Tel: 760‐872‐8211   www.gbuapcd.org 

GOVERNING BOARD SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA  

THURSDAY, JANUARY 9, 2020 AT 10:00 AM 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Multipurpose Room at 

300 Mandich Street, Bishop, California 93514 

 

 

 

 
Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District is a California regional government  

agency that works to protect the people and the environment of Alpine, Mono and Inyo Counties  
from the harmful effects of air pollution. 

 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda (No Action) 

3. Consent Items (Action) 

a. Approval of the November 7, 2019 Regular Governing Board Meeting Minutes ...........1 

b. Approval of Proposed 2020 District Rule and Policy Adoption Schedule .......................9 

c. Award of Bid and Authorization to Purchase One (1) New High-Clearance 4-door 4-
Wheel Drive Sport Utility Vehicle, Bid Number 2019-V1 (Action)  .............................10 

d. Award of Bid and Authorization to Purchase One (1) New High-Clearance 4-door All-
Wheel Drive Hybrid Sport Utility Vehicle, Bid Number 2019-V2 (Action)  ................22 

e. Approval of District Lactation Accommodation Policy Per SB 142 ..............................34 

f. Adoption of Publicly Available Pay Schedule for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 as Required 
by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)  ...........................43 

4.   Potential Revisions to the District’s Smoke Management Program and Associated Open       
  Outdoor Burning Regulations (No Action) ...………………………………………………45  

5.   Public Safety Power Shutdowns and Emergency Generators (No Action) …………...…...62  

6.   Owens Lake Phase 9/10 Dust Control Update (No Action) ……………………………….64  

7.   Consider Appointing an Alternate to the District Hearing Board (Action) ………………..70  

8. Informational Items (No Action) 

a. Travel Report ..................................................................................................................73 

b. 2020 Governing Board Regular Meeting Schedule ........................................................74 

9. Board Member Reports (No Action) 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

Assistance for those with disabilities: If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please 
call Tori DeHaven, Board Clerk, at (760) 872-8211 for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made. 



January 9, 2020  Bishop, California 
 
 
10. Air Pollution Control Officer Report (No Action)  ..............................................................78 

11. CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING              
   LITIGATION: 

a. Russell Covington; Robert Moore; Randy Sipes; Randal Sipes, Jr.; Laborers’ 
International Union of North America Local Union No. 783 vs. Great Basin Unified Air 
Pollution Control District; Mono County Superior Court, Case No. CV140075; 
pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9 of the California Government Code. 

 

12. Adjournment 

 

(All Meetings Are Electronically Recorded – All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public 
inspection at the time the record is distributed to all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the 

District office located at 157 Short Street, Bishop, California.) 

********************************************* 



Consent Agenda (Action) - Approval of the November 7, 2019 Regular Governing Board Meeting Minutes 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3a – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 

 
Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020   

To: District Governing Board 

From: Tori DeHaven, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Approval of the November 7, 2019 Regular Governing Board Meeting Minutes 
 

 
Summary: 
Attached for the Board’s approval are the minutes from the November 7, 2019 regular meeting held 
in Bridgeport, California.  
 
  
Board Action: 
Staff recommends that the Board review and approve the minutes from the November 7, 2019 
meeting. 
 
 
Attachment:  

1. November 7, 2019 minutes  
 
 
 
   
   
 
 
   
 
 
   
 
   

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 1 of 77



   November 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
   Page 1 of 7 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

November 7, 2019 

(All Meetings Are Mechanically Recorded) 

The Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing Board of the Counties of Alpine, Inyo 
and Mono, State of California met at 10:00 am on November 7, 2019 in the Mono County Board of 
Supervisors Chamber (2nd Floor), Mono County Courthouse, Main Street (U.S. Highway 395), 
Bridgeport, California 93517. 

Governing Board members present:  
Matt Kingsley, Board Chair, Inyo County 

         Fred Stump, Board Vice Chair, Mono County             
         Dan Totheroh, Inyo County    
         John Peters, Mono County 

Ron Hames, Alpine County 
David Griffith, Alpine County 

Governing Board members absent:  
         John Wentworth, Town of Mammoth Lakes 

A quorum was present. 

GBUAPCD staff present:  
Phill Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 
Ann Logan, Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer 
Tori DeHaven, Clerk of the Board 
Susan Cash, Administrative Projects Manager 
Jonathan Becknell, Air Quality Specialist II 
Jan Sudomier, Air Quality Specialist II 

Members of the public included: (as indicated by voluntary sign-in) 
Jason Branz, California Air Resources Board 

        Gordon Martin, United States Forest Service 
        Taro Pusina, United States Forest Service 

David Andersen, United States Forest Service 
Michael O’Sullivan, Mono County Resident 
Richard Johnson, Alpine County 

        Lara Kaylor, Mammoth Lakes Tourism 
        John Urdi, Mammoth Lakes Tourism 
        Rhonda Duggan, Mammoth Lakes Tourism/Mammoth Lakes Recreation 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 2 of 77



 
 
       November 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 2 of 7                   

Agenda Item #1 
Call to Order 
Pledge of 
Allegiance 
 

Board Chair Kingsley called to order the regular meeting of the Governing Board at 
10:00 a.m.  
 
Board Member Peters then led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Agenda Item #2 
Public Comment 
on Matters not on 
the Agenda 
(No Action) 

Board Chair Kingsley asked for public comment on items not on the agenda at 10:01 
am.  
 
No comment was offered. 
 

Agenda Item #3 
WORKSHOP 
Potential 
Revisions to the 
District Smoke 
Management 
Program and 
Associated Open 
Outdoor Burning 
Rules              
(No Action) 

Board Chair Kingsley opened the public workshop at 10:01 am. 
 
APCO Kiddoo gave a brief introduction regarding the workshop. 
 
DAPCO Logan presented the staff report as presented in the Board Packet. She noted 
that the current Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) expired in 2006, along with the 
specific agencies, staff is working to update and revise the smoke management 
program and MOA. Revisions being considered: 

 Clarify and remove redundancies and simplify the documents. 
 Remove unnecessary obstacles. 
 Improve communication and coordinate protocols. 
 Update language to state that burning shall be managed to minimize smoke 

impacts to populated areas. 
 Add procedures for reviewing ignition requests on marginal burn days. 
 Incorporate additional details to clarify the procedures for naturally ignited 

wildfires managed for resource benefits to supersede the Operating Plan for 
Wildland Fire Use Smoke Management. 

 Add additional details for addressing cross-jurisdictional smoke impacts. 
 
Board member concerns included: 

 Providing mitigations to address public health concerns such as cooling 
centers or clean air shelters. 

 Language to help mitigate issues when dealing with smoke impacts from 
adjacent land managers and air districts. 

 Standardized public health mitigation tools such as a recommended list of 
masks or a “Be Prepared” kit. 

 Greenhouse gases and climate change impacts. 
 Involving local tribes. 
 Economic impacts and expenses to local agencies such as counties. 

 

Dr. Richard Johnson, Alpine County Public Health Officer, noted that he appreciates 
the health advisories sent out by the District. As far as clean air shelters or cooling 
centers, each county deals with those situations differently and requires a lot of 
collaboration and money. Each is very event specific and it would be difficult to have 
a plan prepared. He went on to explain that when it comes to masks as a mitigation to 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 3 of 77



 
 
       November 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 3 of 7                   

protect public health during high smoke impact instances, there is a lot of controversy 
and disagreement between health officers. There are some people that would not 
benefit from the use of an air filtration mask. Dr. Johnson added that he believes that 
having more monitoring in microclimate areas, such as Bear Valley, would be helpful 
as well. 
 
Mr. Michael O’Sullivan, southern Mono County resident, recalled the once accepted 
burning practices in California and their impacts. He also recalled the efforts by the 
District and its Board to improve air quality in local communities. He expressed 
concern over the land managers efforts to relax burning regulations to decrease costs.  
 
Mr. John Urdi, Mammoth Lakes Tourism, asked for clarification regarding repealing 
restrictions to burn on holidays. The economic impacts for the region are tremendous 
if allowed to burn during peak times of the year, including holidays. 
 
Ms. Rhonda Duggan, Crowley Lake resident, spoke regarding unintended 
consequences of burning such as impacts to residents and visitors as well as 
economic impacts. 
 
Mr. Jason Branz, California Air Resources Board, stated that the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) is taking a more flexible position regarding prescribed 
burning with the Governor’s order from last year and in response to the destructive 
fires occurring in the last couple of years. CARB is trying to work closely with land 
managers while also working to protect public health. 
 
Mr. Taro Pusina, Inyo National Forest, applauded collaborative efforts of the District, 
the Board and land managers to update the outdated MOA. Mr. Pusina noted that he 
has dedicated his career to fighting unwanted wildfires and is passionate about 
building resilience back to our communities and the important shared values such as 
recreation, tourism, sensitive plants, animals, cultural historic heritage sites which are 
all at great risk. He noted that one hundred years of a very successful and active fire 
suppression has resulted in smoke and fire “debt” which is being paid back in spades, 
for example, the Camp Fire. Communities are being lost. As a result, the state and 
other agencies are tasking the land managers with accountability and expect them to 
proactively conduct these treatments. Land managers are working closely together 
with the District to seek valid compromises and solutions in order to protect public 
health while taking a stance of proactive fire management policies. 
 

Agenda Item #4 
Consent Items   
(Action) 

Motion (Griffith/Stump) approving consent item a as follows: 
 

a. Approval of the September 5, 2019 Regular Governing Board Meeting 
Minutes. 
 

Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Totheroh, Stump, Hames, Griffith 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: Board Members - Peters

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 4 of 77



 
 
       November 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 4 of 7                   

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth 
Motion carried 5/0 and so ordered. 

B/O #191107-4a 
 

Motion (Griffith/Totheroh) approving consent item b as follows: 
 

b. Authorization for GBUAPCD to Enter into a Grant Agreement with 
CARB for the Woodsmoke Reduction Program 2018-2019 in the Amount 
of $100,168.07 and Authorize the APCO to Sign all Paperwork Related to 
the Grant. 
 

Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Totheroh, Stump, Hames, Griffith, Peters 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth 
Motion carried 6/0 and so ordered. 

B/O #191107-4b 
 

Agenda Item #5 
Approve and 
Authorize Board 
Chair to Sign 
Amendment to 
Contract with 
Phillip L. Kiddoo 
for the 
Provisions of 
Personal Services 
as the District 
APCO 
(Action) 

Motion (Hames/Peters) approving and authorizing the Board Chair to sign 
Amendment Number 2 to the Personal Services contract with Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air 
Pollution Control Officer.  
 

 
Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Totheroh, Stump, Hames, Griffith, Peters 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth 
Motion carried 6/0 and so ordered. 

B/O #191107-05 
   

Agenda Item #6 
Approval of 
Draft Update to 
District 
Unification 
Agreement           
(Action) 
 
 

Motion (Peters/Hames) approving draft changes to the unification agreement and 
directing staff to proceed with next steps.  
 
Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Totheroh, Stump, Hames, Griffith, Peters 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth 
Motion carried 6/0 and so ordered. 

B/O #191107-06 
 

Agenda Item #7 
Public Outreach 
Regarding 
Emergency 
Generators and 

APCO Kiddoo explained how the Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) events impact 
the District specifically to District monitoring stations.  
 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 5 of 77



 
 
       November 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 5 of 7                   

Public Safety 
Power Shutoff 
Events 
(No Action) 

DAPCO Logan added as a result of these impacts many residents, agencies and 
businesses have become interested in backup generator power. In response the 
District has begun to develop and implement a public outreach to inform businesses 
and the public of permitting requirements as well as public health considerations for 
use of emergency generators. A District permit is required for any residential or 
commercial diesel generator that’s greater than 50 horsepower. Permits may be 
required for large gasoline or propane generators, depending on the emissions. A 
press release and webpage have been released to notify the public and businesses of 
information and frequently asked questions. 
 
Board member Griffith suggested sending the press release to building departments 
within the counties. 
 
Board member Stump expressed concern regarding permit fees; he noted he would 
like to see a provision for a request for a fee waiver for emergency situations such as 
PSPS events. 
 
Board Chair Kingsley suggested staff research the fee waiver issue and come back 
with a recommendation. 
 

Agenda Item #8 
Informational 
Items 
(No Action) 

No questions or comments. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #9 
Board Member 
Reports 
(No Action) 

Board member Hames: interested in showing the Board/District a recent golf engine 
invention he came across. He also recently toured the superfund site (Leviathan 
Mine) in Alpine County. 
 
Board member Griffith: Noted that he’s very much against strict regulation regarding 
Leviathan Mine, unless there’s a major violation. Alpine County is working to get 
monitoring station for Washoe Tribe. 
 
The other Board members noted they had nothing further to report. 
 

Agenda Item 
#10 
Air Pollution 
Control Officer’s 
Report 
(No Action) 

As well as the staff report, APCO Kiddoo reported on the following items: 
 The current Air Quality Specialists, Mr. Jonathan Becknell and Ms. Jan 

Sudomier, are both retiring at the end of 2019. The District thanks them for 
the valued service and many contributions. There is also a vacant Air 
Monitoring Technician position vacant. Staff is in the process of recruitment 
and hiring to fill the position. 

 Mono Lake Monitoring updates: Work continues. District is working on the 
air quality monitoring update and collaborating with partners on a 
hydrological monitoring update. There is a looming deadline for the City 
regarding Mono Lake not reaching the level as required by the State 
Resources Water Control Board and staff is trying to come up with creative 
ways to engage the City for their involvement with the project. 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 6 of 77



 
 
       November 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 6 of 7                   

 Owens Lake compliance period began 10/16/2019. The City is currently 
operation 48.6 square miles of dust control; which is the largest in the 
country. A Phase 9/10 deadline is coming up as well. 

 In early 2019, the District made some important changes in the operation and 
management of the Keeler Dunes Project. Three major changes are: 1) 
contract with American Conservation Experience (ACE) for conducting vital 
irrigation, planting and other project operation tasks; 2) an intern has been 
hired by the District to manage the ACE staff and associated activities; 3) 
there is a lot more involvement with District staff including the growing and 
acclimation of 10,000 plants for the Keeler Dunes Project. 

 Regarding the Clean Air Project Program (CAPP), staff is in the process of 
preparing to develop the program guidelines and developing an 
implementation timeline for utilizing the CAPP funds, which were received 
from the City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (City) on 
February 6, 2019. The Board shall have the sole authority and discretion 
regarding project selection and approval but will consider any project 
recommendations made by the City in accordance with the District 2011 
Stipulated Order of Abatement (2011 SOA). 
 

Agenda Item 
#11 
Consider 
Cancellation of 
the Next Regular 
Meeting (January 
2, 2020) of the 
Governing Board 
and Scheduling a 
Special Meeting 
(Action) 

Motion (Hames/Totheroh) canceling the January 2, 2020 regular meeting and 
scheduling a special meeting for Thursday, January 9, 2020 at 10:00am in Inyo 
County, CA. 
 
Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Totheroh, Stump, Hames, Griffith, Peters 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth 
Motion carried 6/0 and so ordered. 

B/O #191107-11

Agenda Item 
#12 
CLOSED 
SESSION 

The Board convened into closed session at 12:55 pm. 

The Board re-convened into open session at 1:03 pm. 

Board Chair Kingsley left at 1:03 pm.  

CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – 
EXISTING LITIGATION: 

a. Russell Covington; Robert Moore; Randy Sipes; Randal Sipes, Jr.; 
Laborers’ International Union of North America Local Union No. 
783 vs. Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District; Mono 
County Superior Court, Case No. CV140075; pursuant to 
subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9 of the California Government 
Code. 

 
Report: Nothing to report.

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 7 of 77



 
 
       November 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 7 of 7                   

Adjournment The meeting was adjourned by Board Vice Chair Stump at 1:03 pm. The Board will 
reconvene in open session at 10:00 am, on Thursday, January 9, 2020 in Bishop 
California. 

                                
 

      ________________________ 
                                                                                                        Matt Kingsley, Board Chair                            

Attest: 
 
_______________________ 
Tori DeHaven, Board Clerk 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 8 of 77



Consent (Action) - Approval of Proposed 2020 District Rule and Policy Adoption Schedule 
 January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3b – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020   

To: District Governing Board 

From: Ann Logan, Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer 

Subject: Approval of Proposed 2020 District Rule and Policy Adoption Schedule  
 

The District is required to prepare a list of regulatory measures scheduled or tentatively 
scheduled for consideration during the year per California Health & Safety Code §40923. The 
District may propose a measure not listed if necessary, to satisfy federal requirements, to protect 
public health, to preserve the original intent, or to increase opportunities for alternative 
compliance methods. The following are regulatory measures or policies that may be considered 
by the Governing Board for adoption, revision, or rescission in the 2020 calendar year.   

Type Rule Title 

New  --- Mutual Settlement Policy 

Revision 101 Definitions 

Revision 205 Action and Applications 

Revision 209-A Standards for Authorities to Construct 

Revision 216-A New Source Review Requirements for Determining Impact on Air 
Quality – Secondary Sources 

Revision 217 Additional Procedures for Issuing Permits to Operate for Sources 
Subject to Title V of the Federal CAA Amendments of 1990 

Revision 300 Permit Fees 

Revision 301 Permit Fee Schedule 

Revision 308 Prescribed Burning Fee 

Revision 411 Wildland Vegetation Management Burning in Wildland and 
Wildland/Urban Interface Areas 

Revision 701 Air Pollution Episode Plan 

Rescission 1102 Governing Board Membership, Funding and Voting Procedures 

Board Action 

Staff recommends the Governing Board approve the proposed list and authorize the Air Pollution 
Control Officer to initiate any necessary processes for the above listed rule and policy adoptions, 
revisions and rescissions. 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 9 of 77



Consent Agenda (Action) - Award of Bid and Authorization to Purchase of One (1) New High-Clearance 4-door  
4-Wheel Drive Sport Utility Vehicle, Bid Number 2019-V1 

January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3c– Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Christopher Lanane, Air Monitoring Specialist  

Subject: Award of Bid and Authorization to Purchase of One (1) New High-
Clearance 4-door 4-Wheel Drive Sport Utility Vehicle, Bid Number 
2019-V1 

 

 
Summary:  Staff determined a replacement vehicle was needed for the Keeler office, based on 
District guidelines for regular vehicle assessment, which state that field vehicles may be replaced 
after they have accumulated 110,000 miles, or when staff determines that significant maintenance 
and/or safety issues warrant replacement.  It was determined that the following vehicle is in need of 
replacement:    

 
2011 Toyota Tacoma 4-wheel drive pickup truck, odometer reading: 166,000 miles, Keeler 

 
The cost of maintenance for this vehicle is now close to the residual value of the vehicle, therefore, it 
is more cost-effective to replace the vehicle rather than continue to repair it.   
 
Staff has determined that the appropriate replacement vehicle for the District would be the following: 
 

One (1) new 2019 or 2020 high-clearance 4-door 4-wheel drive sport utility vehicle 
 
Funds had been budgeted for the replacement vehicle and bids were solicited according to the 
District’s Purchasing Policies and Procedures (May 2019).  The public notice announcing the bid was 
published beginning November 28, 2019.  Bid packets were distributed via e-mail to dealers in 
California and Nevada and the bid packets were posted on the District's website.  The bid opening 
took place Friday, December 13, 2019, at 3:00 p.m. at the Bishop office.  
 
Bids were received from one (1) bidder (attached) and were opened at the Bishop office on Friday, 
December 13, 2019.  The bid for the vehicle appeared compliant and met District specifications.  The 
bid is listed below: 
 
   Perry Motors, Inc., 2020 Toyota 4Runner, $38,800.91 
 
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 10 of 77



Consent Agenda (Action) - Award of Bid and Authorization to Purchase of One (1) New High-Clearance 4-door  
4-Wheel Drive Sport Utility Vehicle, Bid Number 2019-V1 

January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3c– Page 2 

Fiscal Impact:  Funds in the amount of $45,000 in the replacement vehicle SB270 budget were 
allocated for a new vehicle for the Keeler office.  100% of the cost of the new vehicle for the Keeler 
office will be borne by the SB270 budget.  Staff has determined the cost of the qualifying vehicle is 
well within the funds available. 
 
Board Action Staff recommends the Board award the bid for and authorize the APCO to purchase 
one (1) new qualifying high-clearance 4-door 4-wheel-drive sport utility vehicle as specified in Bid 
Number 2019-V1, for the Keeler office, to the following organization submitting the lowest 
qualifying bid: 
 
  Bid 2019-V1 – Perry Motors, Inc., Bishop, CA, 2020 Toyota 4Runner, $38,800.91 
 
Should staff, upon inspection, find that the vehicle does not meet District specifications, staff 
recommends the Board authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to reject that bid and to accept the 
next lowest qualifying bid, and so on, until a qualified bid is found, or to reject all bids and to conduct 
another round of bidding for the replacement vehicle. 
 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 11 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 12 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 13 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 14 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 15 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 16 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 17 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 18 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 19 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 20 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 21 of 77



Consent Agenda (Action) - Award of Bid and Authorization to Purchase of One (1) New High-Clearance 4-door          
All-Wheel Drive Hybrid Sport Utility Vehicle, Bid Number 2019-V2 

January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3d – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Christopher Lanane, Air Monitoring Specialist  

Subject: Award of Bid and Authorization to Purchase of One (1) New High-
Clearance 4-door All-Wheel Drive Hybrid Sport Utility Vehicle, Bid 
Number 2019-V2 

 

 
Summary:  Staff determined a replacement vehicle was needed for the Bishop office, based on 
District guidelines for regular vehicle assessment, which state that field vehicles may be replaced 
after they have accumulated 110,000 miles, or when staff determines that significant maintenance 
and/or safety issues warrant replacement.  It was determined that the following vehicle is in need of 
replacement:    

 
2001 Toyota 4Runner sport utility vehicle, odometer reading: 118,000 miles, Bishop 

 
The cost of maintenance for this vehicle is now close to the residual value of the vehicle, therefore, it 
is more cost-effective to replace the vehicle rather than continue to repair it.   
 
Staff has determined that the appropriate replacement vehicle for the District would be the following: 
 

One (1) new 2019 or 2020 high-clearance 4-door all-wheel drive hybrid sport utility vehicle 
 
Funds had been budgeted for the vehicle and bids were solicited according to the District’s 
Purchasing, Bidding, and Contracting Policy.  The public notice announcing the bid was published 
beginning November 28, 2019.  Bid packets were distributed via e-mail to dealers in California and 
Nevada and the bid packets were posted on the District's website.  The bid opening took place  
Friday, December 13, 2019, at 3:00 p.m. at the Bishop office.  
 
Bids were received from one (1) bidder (Attached) and were opened at the Bishop office on Friday, 
December 13, 2019.  The bid for the vehicle appeared compliant and met District specifications.  The 
bid is listed below: 
 
  Perry Motors, Inc., 2020 Toyota RAV4 Hybrid, $29,230.46 
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 22 of 77



Consent Agenda (Action) - Award of Bid and Authorization to Purchase of One (1) New High-Clearance 4-door          
All-Wheel Drive Hybrid Sport Utility Vehicle, Bid Number 2019-V2 

January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3d – Page 2 

Fiscal Impact:  Funds in the amount of $45,000 in the replacement vehicle District budget were 
allocated for a new vehicle for the Bishop office.  100% of the cost of the new vehicle for the Bishop 
office will be borne by the District budget.  Staff has determined the cost of the qualifying vehicle is 
well within the funds available. 
 
Board Action:  Staff recommends the Board award the bid for and authorize the APCO to purchase 
one (1) new qualifying high-clearance 4-door all-wheel-drive hybrid sport utility vehicle as specified 
in Bid Number 2019-V2, for the Bishop office, to the following organization submitting the lowest 
qualifying bid: 
 
   For 2019-V2 – Perry Motors, Inc., Bishop, CA, at $29,230.46 
 
Should staff, upon inspection, find that either vehicle does not meet District specifications, staff 
recommends the Board authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to reject that bid and to accept the 
next lowest qualifying bid, and so on, until a qualified bid is found, or to reject all bids and to conduct 
another round of bidding for the replacement vehicle. 
 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 23 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 24 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 25 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 26 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 27 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 28 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 29 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 30 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 31 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 32 of 77



Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 33 of 77



Consent Agenda (Action) – Approval of District Lactation Accommodation Policy Per SB 142 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3e – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Susan Cash, Administrative Projects Manager  

Subject: Approval of District Lactation Accommodation Policy per SB 142  

 
Summary: 
 
California employers are required to allow an employee to use their break time to express breast milk 
and to provide a private location other than a bathroom for such lactation accommodation.  Under SB 
142, an employer must now provide a private lactation room other than a bathroom that must be in 
“close proximity to the employee’s workspace” with the following features: 

 Is shielded from view and free from intrusion while the employee expresses milk; 
 Contain a surface to place a breast pump and personal items; 
 Contain a place to sit; 
 Have access to electricity or alternative devices (such as extension cords or charging stations) 

needed to operate an electric or battery-powered breast pump. 
 
An employer may comply with this new law by designating a lactation location that is temporary due 
to operational, financial or space limitations so long as such space still meets the above-referenced 
requirements. 
 
Separately, employers must also provide access to a sink with running water and a refrigerator or 
other cooling device suitable for storing milk in close proximity to the employee’s workspace.   
 
If an employer uses a multipurpose room as a lactation room, such use shall take precedence over 
other uses but only for the time it is in use for lactation purposes.   
 
The only potential exemption to these new requirements is for employers with fewer than fifty (50) 
employees who can demonstrate that this requirement would impose an undue hardship by causing 
the employer significant difficulty or expense when considered in relation to the size, financial 
resources, nature, or structure of the employer’s business.  An employer who can establish such 
undue hardship shall make reasonable efforts to provide the employee with the use of a room or other 
location, other than a toilet stall, in close proximity to the employee’s work area, for the employee to 
express milk in private. The District does not qualify for this exemption, as the majority of the 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 34 of 77



Consent Agenda (Action) – Approval of District Lactation Accommodation Policy Per SB 142 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3e – Page 2 

District’s employees have private offices that meet the legal requirements for lactation space. Those 
who do not have private offices can be easily accommodated in other spaces. 
 
An employer who fails to provide break time or adequate lactation accommodations may be fined one 
hundred dollars ($100) for each day an employee is denied reasonable break time or adequate space 
to express milk.  
 
In addition, SB 142 requires that California employers develop and implement a policy regarding 
lactation accommodation requirements that include the following: 

 A statement about an employee’s right to request lactation accommodation; 
 The process by which the employee makes the request; 
 An employer’s obligation to respond to the request; and 
 A statement about an employee’s right to file a complaint with the Labor Commissioner for 

any violation of the law.   
 

Employers are required to include the policy in an employee handbook or set of policies that are 
made available to employees, and distribute the policy to new employees at the time of hire and when 
an employee makes an inquiry about or requests parental leave.  If an employer cannot provide break 
time or a location that complies with their policy, the employer must provide a written response to the 
employee.  
 
The APCO and Administrative Projects Manager met and conferred on the potential impacts of 
implementing this policy with the two Employee Associations; no impacts were identified.  Both 
associations provided valuable input into the language of the policy and almost all of their 
suggestions were integrated into the policy.  The associations’ participation and input are appreciated. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None.   
 
Board Action:  
 
Approve the District Lactation Accommodation Policy 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. District Lactation Accommodation Policy (draft) 
2. SB 142 

 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 35 of 77



GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT LACTATION 
ACCOMMODATION POLICY 

 
Introduction 

 
The Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District (“District”) recognizes the need to promote a 
work environment that is supportive of employees who wish to express milk or breastfeed their 
children at work.  

 
Statement of Policy 

 
The District encourages employees and management to have a positive, accepting attitude of working 
women and breastfeeding. The District’s Lactation Accommodation Policy shall be disseminated to 
every incoming employee, as well as to employees requesting parental leave. In accordance with 
Federal and California State laws, it is the policy of the District to accommodate nursing employees’ 
lactation needs by providing: 

 
1. Reasonable break time to express milk or breastfeed (lactation time) 

 
If an employee chooses to work while expressing milk or breastfeeding, the employee may do so 
while continuing to work on paid time.  If the employee chooses not to work, or is unable to work, the 
lactation time should be the same as the employee’s regular break time. 
 
The District must make separate time available if an employee needs extra or different time than their 
regularly scheduled breaks.  For time that may be needed beyond the usual break times, an employee 
may use personal leave if available, otherwise any time beyond the employee’s regular break time 
will be unpaid. Non-exempt employees do not have scheduled or limited breaks, and thus time 
expressing milk or breastfeeding does not require use of personal leave.  At management discretion, 
beginning or ending work times may be adjusted to accommodate these breaks. 

 
2. An appropriate private location 

 
Appropriate private space shall be provided with reasonable efforts made for the location to be in 
close proximity to the nursing employees’ work area. The space should be safe, clean, and free from 
hazardous materials, contain a surface other than the floor to place a breast pump and personal items, 
be equipped with an electrical outlet, and have comfortable seating. 

 
The location may be the place where the nursing mother normally works if there is adequate privacy 
(e.g., the employee’s private office, a supervisor’s private office, or a conference room that can be 
secured). 

 
Areas such as restrooms, closets or storage rooms are not appropriate spaces for lactation purposes. 
Storage rooms that do not contain noxious materials may be converted to be acceptable private 
spaces. If a multipurpose room is used for lactation among other uses, the use of the room for 
lactation shall take precedence. 

  

Agenda Item No. 3e - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 36 of 77



A sink with running water and a refrigerator suitable for storing milk (or another cooling device) shall 
be made available in close proximity to the employee’s workplace. 
 
For non-traditional worksites and any required travel, the employee and the supervisor and/or the 
District’s Human Resources Office should enter into a good faith interactive process to identify 
reasonable accommodations. 

 
3. Notice/Information 
 
The District’s Human Resources Office shall provide a copy of this policy to employees prior to their 
maternity leave and after returning to work. Human Resource staff should document furnishing the 
policy to employees on both occasions. 

 
The Human Resources Office shall continue to be the lead division for equal employment opportunity 
policy, complaint resolution, and reasonable accommodation. As such, the Human Resources Office 
shall be the lead division for lactation accommodation and shall monitor and provide guidance to 
other divisions for compliance with this directive and other non- discrimination laws, policies and 
procedures, and recommended training.  

Lactation Accommodation Request Procedure 
 
An employee has the right to request lactation accommodation. An employee who has need for 
lactation accommodation should inform her supervisor and/or the District’s Human Resources Office 
and discuss any relevant workload or scheduling issues. 

 
Supervisors and/or Human Resource staff who receive a lactation accommodation request shall do the 
following: 

 
1. Review available space in the division and prepare to provide appropriate nearby space and 

break time. 
 

2. Contact the Human Resources Office for advice and assistance if you are unable to locate 
appropriate space to meet an employee’s request. 

 
3. Respond to the employee’s request in writing detailing accommodations that will be made. 

 
Zero Tolerance 

 
Lactation should not constitute a source of discrimination in employment or in access to employment. It 
is prohibited under this policy to harass a lactating employee; such conduct unreasonably interferes with 
an employee’s work performance and creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment. 
Any incident of harassment of a lactating employee will be addressed in accordance with the District’s 
policies and procedures for discrimination and harassment.  

Agenda Item No. 3e - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 37 of 77



Filing a Complaint 

Nursing mothers who feel they have been denied appropriate accommodation are encouraged to 
contact the Human Resources Office. The Human Resources Office may be contacted for information 
to file a complaint. Investigations will be conducted in accordance with the District Discrimination 
Complaint Procedure. 

Complaints may also be filed with the State compliance agency (Department of Fair Employment and 
Housing (DFEH) and/or State Labor Commission), and/or the Federal compliance agency (Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC)). 

Agenda Item No. 3e - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 38 of 77



Senate Bill No. 142 

CHAPTER 720 

An act to amend Sections 1030, 1031, and 1033 of, and to add Section 
1034 to, the Labor Code, relating to employment. 

[Approved by Governor October 10, 2019. Filed with Secretary 
of State October 10, 2019.] 

legislative counsel’s digest

SB 142, Wiener. Employees: lactation accommodation. 
Existing law prohibits an employer, who is required by law to give an 

employee a rest period during a workday, from requiring the employee to 
work during the rest period. Existing law requires an employer to pay the 
employee one additional hour of pay, at the employee’s regular rate of 
compensation, for each rest period not provided. Existing law requires 
employers to provide a reasonable amount of break time to employees 
desiring to express milk for the employee’s infant child. Existing law also 
requires an employer to make reasonable efforts to provide the employee 
with the use of a room, or other location, other than a bathroom, in close 
proximity to the employee’s work area, for the employee to express milk 
in private. Existing law exempts an employer from the break time 
requirement if the employer’s operations would be seriously disrupted by 
providing that time to employees desiring to express milk. Existing law 
subjects employers who violate these provisions to a civil penalty of $100 
per violation and authorizes the Labor Commissioner to issue citations for 
those violations. 

This bill would instead require an employer to provide a lactation room 
or location that includes prescribed features and would require an employer, 
among other things, to provide access to a sink and refrigerator in close 
proximity to the employee’s workspace, as specified. The bill would deem 
denial of reasonable break time or adequate space to express milk a failure 
to provide a rest period in accordance with state law. The bill would prohibit 
an employer from discharging, or in any other manner discriminating or 
retaliating against, an employee for exercising or attempting to exercise 
rights under these provisions and would establish remedies that include 
filing a complaint with the Labor Commissioner. The bill would authorize 
employers with fewer than 50 employees to seek an exemption from the 
requirements of these provisions if the employer demonstrates that the 
requirement posed an undue hardship by causing the employer significant 
difficulty or expense, as specified. The bill would require an employer who 
obtains an exemption to make a reasonable effort to provide a place for an 
employee to express milk in private, as specified. 

91 

Agenda Item No. 3e - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 39 of 77



The bill would require an employer to develop and implement a policy 
regarding lactation accommodation and make it available to employees, as 
specified. 

The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 

SECTION 1. Section 1030 of the Labor Code is amended to read: 
1030. Every employer, including the state and any political subdivision, 

shall provide a reasonable amount of break time to accommodate an 
employee desiring to express breast milk for the employee’s infant child 
each time the employee has need to express milk. The break time shall, if 
possible, run concurrently with any break time already provided to the 
employee. Break time for an employee that does not run concurrently with 
the rest time authorized for the employee by the applicable wage order of 
the Industrial Welfare Commission shall be unpaid. 

SEC. 2. Section 1031 of the Labor Code is amended to read: 
1031. (a)  An employer shall provide an employee with the use of a 

room or other location for the employee to express milk in private. The 
room or location may include the place where the employee normally works 
if it otherwise meets the requirements of this section. 

(b)  A lactation room or location shall not be a bathroom and shall be in 
close proximity to the employee’s work area, shielded from view, and free 
from intrusion while the employee is expressing milk. 

(c)  A lactation room or location shall comply with all of the following 
requirements: 

(1)  Be safe, clean, and free of hazardous materials, as defined in Section 
6382. 

(2)  Contain a surface to place a breast pump and personal items. 
(3)  Contain a place to sit. 
(4)  Have access to electricity or alternative devices, including, but not 

limited to, extension cords or charging stations, needed to operate an electric 
or battery-powered breast pump. 

(d)  The employer shall provide access to a sink with running water and 
a refrigerator suitable for storing milk in close proximity to the employee’s 
workspace. If a refrigerator cannot be provided, an employer may provide 
another cooling device suitable for storing milk, such as an 
employer-provided cooler. 

(e)  Where a multipurpose room is used for lactation, among other uses, 
the use of the room for lactation shall take precedence over the other uses, 
but only for the time it is in use for lactation purposes. 

(f)  (1)  An employer in a multitenant building or multiemployer worksite 
may comply with this section by providing a space shared among multiple 
employers within the building or worksite if the employer cannot provide 
a lactation location within the employer’s own workspace. 

(2)  Employers or general contractors coordinating a multiemployer 
worksite shall either provide lactation accommodations or provide a safe 

91 

— 2 — Ch. 720 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 40 of 77



and secure location for a subcontractor employer to provide lactation 
accommodations on the worksite, within two business days, upon written 
request of any subcontractor employer with an employee that requests an 
accommodation. 

(g)  An agricultural employer, as defined in Section 1140.4, shall be 
deemed to be in compliance with this section if the agricultural employer 
provides an employee wanting to express milk with a private, enclosed, and 
shaded space, including, but not limited to, an air-conditioned cab of a truck 
or tractor. 

(h)  An employer may comply with this section by designating a lactation 
location that is temporary, due to operational, financial, or space limitations. 
These temporary spaces shall not be a bathroom and shall be in close 
proximity to the employee’s work area, shielded from view, free from 
intrusion while the employee is expressing milk, and otherwise compliant 
with this section. 

(i)  An employer that employs fewer than 50 employees may be exempt 
from a requirement of this section if it can demonstrate that a requirement 
would impose an undue hardship by causing the employer significant 
difficulty or expense when considered in relation to the size, financial 
resources, nature, or structure of the employer’s business. If that employer 
can demonstrate that the requirement to provide an employee with the use 
of a room or other location, other than a bathroom, would impose such 
undue hardship, the employer shall make reasonable efforts to provide the 
employee with the use of a room or other location, other than a toilet stall, 
in close proximity to the employee’s work area, for the employee to express 
milk in private. 

SEC. 3. Section 1033 of the Labor Code is amended to read: 
1033. (a)  The denial of reasonable break time or adequate space to 

express milk in accordance with this chapter shall be deemed a failure to 
comply for purposes of Section 226.7. An aggrieved employee may file a 
complaint under this subdivision with the Labor Commissioner pursuant to 
Section 98. 

(b)  An employer shall not discharge, or in any other manner discriminate 
or retaliate against, an employee for exercising or attempting to exercise 
any right protected under this chapter. This subdivision is not intended to 
limit or expand an employee’s rights pursuant to Section 98.6. An aggrieved 
employee may file a complaint under this subdivision with the Labor 
Commissioner pursuant to Section 98.7. 

(c)  An employee may report a violation of this chapter to the Labor 
Commissioner’s field enforcement unit. If, upon inspection or investigation, 
the Labor Commissioner determines that a violation of this chapter has 
occurred, the Labor Commissioner may issue a citation and may impose a 
civil penalty in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100) for each day that 
an employee is denied reasonable break time or adequate space to express 
milk in violation of this chapter. The procedures for issuing, contesting, and 
enforcing judgments for citations or civil penalties issued by the Labor 

91 

Ch. 720 — 3 — 

Agenda Item No. 3e - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 41 of 77



Commissioner for violations of this chapter shall be the same as those set 
forth in Section 1197.1. 

(d)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this code, violations of this 
chapter shall not be misdemeanors under this code. 

SEC. 4. Section 1034 is added to the Labor Code, to read: 
1034. (a)  An employer shall develop and implement a policy regarding 

lactation accommodation that includes the following: 
(1)  A statement about an employee’s right to request lactation 

accommodation. 
(2)  The process by which the employee makes the request described in 

paragraph (1). 
(3)  An employer’s obligation to respond to the request described in 

paragraph (1) as outlined in subdivision (d). 
(4)  A statement about an employee’s right to file a complaint with the 

Labor Commissioner for any violation of a right under this chapter. 
(b)  The employer shall include the policy described in subdivision (a) 

in an employee handbook or set of policies that the employer makes available 
to employees. 

(c)  The employer shall distribute the policy described in subdivision (a) 
to new employees upon hiring and when an employee makes an inquiry 
about or requests parental leave. 

(d)  If an employer cannot provide break time or a location that complies 
with the policy described in subdivision (a), the employer shall provide a 
written response to the employee. 

O 

91 

— 4 — Ch. 720 

Agenda Item No. 3e - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 42 of 77



Consent Agenda (Action) - Adoption of Publicly Available Pay Schedules for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 as Required by 
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 

January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3f – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 

BOARD REPORT 

Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020 

To:              District Governing Board 

From: Susan Cash, Administrative Projects Manager 

Subject: Adoption of Publicly Available Pay Schedule for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 
as Required by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS)

Summary: 
The Air Pollution Control Officer’s contract amendment was approved by your board at the 
November 2019 board meeting.   

In order to meet the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) requirements 
set forth in Government Code § 20636 (b)(1) and California Code of Regulations (CCR) § 570.5, 
the Governing Board must approve a comprehensive pay schedule for all District positions - 
including appointed positions - independent from the salary schedules attached to the 
Memoranda of Understanding or included in Employment Agreements or Personal Services 
Contracts.  The attached pay schedule details what the Governing Board approved at the 
November 7, 2019 meeting in a format that is acceptable to CalPERS. 

Board Action:  
Staff recommends that the Governing Board approve the attached salary schedule reflecting all 
District positions and associated salaries in order to meet the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS) requirements of Government Code § 20636 (b)(1) and CCR § 
570.5. 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 43 of 77



Consent Agenda (Action) - Adoption of Publicly Available Pay Schedules for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 as Required by 
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 

January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 3f – Page 2 

 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT   
Publicly Available Pay Schedule (CCR 570.5) 

Fiscal Year 2019 ‐ 2020 

        Monthly 
Salary Rate Position 

 

   
Low 

   
High 

Air Pollution Control Officer  12,742 

Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer  9,255  11,250 

Director of Technical Services  7,585  9,219 

Administrative Projects Manager  7,362  8,948 

Sr. Research & Systems Analyst  7,362  8,948 

Senior Scientist  7,217  8,772 

Air Monitoring Specialist  7,075  8,599 

Air Quality Specialist II  6,867  8,346 

Research & System Analyst II  6,278  7,631 

Air Monitoring Technical Specialist  5,914  7,189 

Air Quality Specialist I     5,914  7,189 

Technical Services Specialist  5,914  7,189 

Air Monitoring Technician II  5,408  6,573 

Field Services Technician II  5,408  6,573 

Research & System Analyst I  5,408  6,573 

Administrative Specialist/Permit Coordinator/Clerk of the Board  5,408  6,573 

Fiscal Services Technician  5,408  6,573 

Field Services Technician I  4,896  5,951 

Air Monitoring Technician I     4,705  5,718 

 
Adopted by the Governing Board 1/9/2020, effective 9/5/2019   

  
 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 44 of 77



Potential Revisions to District’s Smoke Management Program and 
Associated Open Outdoor Burning Rules (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 4 – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514‐3537 

Tel: 760‐872‐8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 

BOARD REPORT 

Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020 

To: District Governing Board 

From: Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 
Ann Logan, Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer 

Subject: Potential Revisions to District’s Smoke Management Program and Associated Open 
Outdoor Burning Rules 

Following discussion at the November 2019 Board meeting and public workshop, District staff has 
prepared redline copies of the draft updated Smoke Management Program and District Rule 411- 
Wildland Vegetation Management Burning in Wildland and Wildland/Urban Interface Areas (see 
Attachment 1 and 2). 

The potential revisions to the Smoke Management Program and District Rule 411 include: 
 Removal of redundant sections
 Updated the language to state that burning shall be managed to minimize smoke impacts to

populated areas, protect public health, and to prevent public nuisance
 Removal of the prohibition from burning on Sundays and holidays
 Incorporation of requirements for unplanned or naturally ignited wildland fires managed for

resource benefits
 Addition of guidelines for cross jurisdictional smoke impacts
 An emphasis on prioritizing public outreach and protection of public health

These revisions should assist the prescribed burning program while ensuring the District retains the 
appropriate authority and discretion to protect public health.  

Fiscal Impact 
District Rule 308, Prescribed Burning Fee, sets annual flat fees for land management agencies that 
conduct burn projects for range, forest and wildland vegetation management on areas greater than 1 
acre in size or that are estimated to produce more than one ton of particulate matter. During Fiscal 
Year 2018-2019, the District collected $5,842 in permit fees associated with prescribed burning. To 
date during Fiscal Year 2019-2020, the District has collected $4,799. At this time, there has not been 
consideration of any changes to the fees associated with the District Smoke Management Program. In 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 45 of 77



Potential Revisions to District’s Smoke Management Program and 
Associated Open Outdoor Burning Rules (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 4 – Page 2 

the future, District staff does plan to incorporate a review of the Smoke Management fees in the 
District fee analysis discussed in Agenda Item 5. 

Board Action: 
None, this item is presented as information only. Staff recommends the Board discuss and provide 
feedback regarding the draft updates. 

Attachments: 
1. Redline copy of draft updated Smoke Management Program
2. Redline copy of draft updated District Rule 411

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 46 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 

Smoke Management Program 

for the Great Basin Unified 

Air Pollution Control District 

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 47 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 

Smoke Management Program for the 
Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District 

Table of Contents  
Page 

1.0 Purpose of the Smoke Management Program 1 

2.0 Requirements for Agricultural Burning Operations 1 

2.1 Applicable Open Burning Activities 1 

2.2 General Requirements for Prescribed and Agricultural Burning 2 

2.3 Smoke Management Plans 3 

 For Burn Projects Greater than 1 acre or 1 ton of PM: 3 

 For Burn Projects Greater than 100 acres or 10 tons of PM: 4 

 If Smoke May Impact Sensitive Areas: 4 

 For Multi-Day Burns: 5 

 For Unplanned or Natural Ignition Fires: 5 

3.0 Permissive Burn Days 5 

3.1 No Burn Days for High Fire Hazard Conditions 6 

3.2 Permissive Burn Day Forecasts 6 

3.3 Daily Burn Authorization 7 

4.0 District Smoke Management Program Tracking and Enforcement 8 

5.0 Cross Jurisdictional Smoke Impacts 

Table 1. Limiting Mean 500-Millibar Heights by Month 6

Figure 1. Map of Great Basin Unified APCD 9

Attachment A – Memorandum of Agreement for Smoke Management 

Attachment B – District Regulations for Open Outdoor Burning 

Attachment C – Example Form for Smoke Management Plan 

Attachment D – Example ARB Form for Controlled Burn (CB) Notices 

(24, 48, 72 and 96-hour) 

Attachment E – Example Special Permit Form to Burn on a No-Burn Day 

Deleted:  for Range Improvement, Forest 
Management,  and Wildland Vegetation Management 
Burning

Deleted: Accidental

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 48 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 

Smoke Management Program for the 
Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District 

1.0 Purpose of the Smoke Management Program 

The Smoke Management Program for the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control 
District (District) was developed in cooperation with the California Air Resources Board, 
public and private land managers, and fire protection authorities for the purpose of 
minimizing adverse air quality impacts related to smoke from prescribed burning; to 
protect public health; and to meet the requirements of the California Code of Regulations, 
Title 17, Smoke Management Guidelines for Agricultural and Prescribed Burning within 
the District’s jurisdiction of Inyo, Mono, and Alpine counties (See Figure 1). This 
smoke management program was adopted by the District Governing Board on November 
7, 2001 and was revised on XX, XX, XXXX. Each participating agency is a signatory to 
a Memorandum of Agreement for Smoke Management (Attachment A), which outlines 
the roles and responsibilities of the agencies to comply with the requirements of the 
Smoke Management Program and the District regulations for prescribed burning.  

2.1 Requirements for Agricultural Burning Operations 

2.2 Applicable Open Burning Activities 

The District’s Smoke Management Program and corresponding regulations for prescribed 
burning apply to all open outdoor fires used in agricultural and prescribed burning 
operations for: 

 The growing of crops or raising of fowl or animals,
 Forest management,
 Range improvement,
 Improvement of land for wildlife and game habitat,
 Disease or pest prevention,
 Maintenance of water delivery systems,
 Wildland vegetation management, and
 Naturally ignited wildland fire managed for resource benefits.

Detailed definitions for agricultural burning and prescribed burning activities are 
included in Rule 101 Definitions, see Attachment B. 

Most of the requirements discussed in this program document do not apply to non- 
agricultural burning operations. Requirements pertaining to open outdoor fires for non- 
agricultural burning operations can be found in the District open outdoor burning 
regulations in Attachment B. 

2.3 General Requirements for Prescribed and Agricultural Burning 

Deleted: Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control 

Deleted: Current participating agencies include:  Great 
Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District (District), 
California Air Resources Board (ARB), Inyo National 
Forest, Humboldt- Toiyabe National Forest, Eldorado 
National Forest, Stanislaus National Forest, Death Valley 
National Park, US Bureau of Land Management and the 
California Department of Forestry. Additional signatories to 
the Agreement may be added in the future.¶

Deleted: This Smoke Management Program was adopted 
by the Great Basin Unified APCD Board along with 
revisions to the District’s regulations for open outdoor fires. 
The Smoke Management Program and corresponding 
regulations were revised and adopted to comply with the 
agricultural burning requirements in Title 17 of the 
California Code of Regulations (effective March 14, 2001). 
District regulations related to open outdoor fires and 
prescribed burning for agricultural operations, forest 
management, range management and wildlands and 
wildland/urban interface areas are included in        
Attachment B.¶

Deleted: Natural or accidental wildfire ignitions

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 49 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 

a. The following is a summary of the District’s prescribed and agricultural
burning regulations to provide an overview of the requirements of the
District open outdoor burning regulations (Attachment B): Prescribed
burning is to be conducted on permissive burn days, unless a special burn
permit is obtained from the Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO).

b. No person shall burn agricultural waste without a burn permit issued by the
fire protection agency with jurisdiction for the location of the burn.

c. Burning shall be managed to minimize smoke impacts to populated areas,
protect public health, and to prevent public nuisance.

d. Vegetation to be burned shall be free of tires, rubbish, tar paper or
construction debris, and reasonably free of dirt and soil.

e. Material to be burned shall be arranged in a manner and condition to minimize
smoke.

These additional requirements apply to prescribed and agricultural burning for the 
purpose of range improvement, forest management, and wildland vegetation 
management. The land manager or his/her designee, shall: 

f. Submit an annual or seasonal list of proposed burn projects to the APCO,
including areas considered for potential naturally-ignited wildland fires
managed for resource benefits.

g. Submit a smoke management plan to the APCO for review and approval for
all burn projects over 1 acre or that have the potential to emit more than 1 ton
of particulate matter emissions at least 30 days in advance of the proposed
burn project.   Smoke management plans for naturally-ignited wildland fires
managed for resource benefits that are expected to exceed 10 acres in size
shall be submitted within 72 hours of the start of a fire.

h. Notify the District at least 3 days before a planned burn to receive a burn day
authorization before proceeding with the burn.

i. Submit reports in January of each year, summarizing prescribed burning
activities conducted by the Fire Management Agency in the last calendar
year. Reports should include the date, location, fuel type, fuel loading, and
total acres or tons of vegetation burned for each prescribed burn operation
and wildfire. The annual reports will allow the District to track the total
particulate matter emissions from prescribed burning operations and to
determine general conformity with the air quality plans in federal PM-10
non-attainment areas.

j. Ensure that all conditions and requirements stated in the smoke
management plan are met on the day of the burn event and prior to
ignition.

2.4 Smoke Management Plans 

T h i s  s e c t i o n  a d d r e s s  t h e  specific requirements for information that must be 

Deleted: District regulations included in Attachment B
provide detailed requirements for agricultural burning. The 

Deleted: for prescribed burning. These requirements apply 
to all agricultural burning:¶

Deleted:  curtailed when smoke is drifting into a 
populated area or creating a public nuisance.…

Deleted: burn with a

Deleted: um 

Deleted: of

Deleted: ,
Deleted: and for accidental or

Deleted: 

Deleted: for Range Improvement, Forest 
Management, and Wildland Vegetation Management 
Burning¶

Deleted: An example form for smoke management plans 
is included in Attachment C. The

Deleted: The 

Deleted: by 

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 50 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 

included in smoke management plans as required by Dis t r i c t  Rule 411.C. 

 For Burn Projects Greater than 1 acre or 1 ton of PM:

For burn projects greater than 1 acre in size or estimated to produce more than 1 ton of 
particulate matter, the land manager, or his/her designee, shall submit a smoke 
management plan to the APCO for review and approval in advance of the proposed burn 
project, containing at a minimum the following information: 

a. Location, types, and amounts of material to be burned;

b. Expected duration of the fire from ignition to extinction;

c. Identification of responsible personnel, including telephone contacts;

d. Identification and location of all smoke sensitive areas; and

e. Procedures for public notification and education, including appropriate signage
at burn sites, and for reporting of public smoke complaints.

 For Burn Projects Greater than 100 acres or 10 tons of PM:

For burn projects greater than 100 acres in size or estimated to produce more than 10 tons 
of particulate matter, the land manager, or his/her designee, shall submit a smoke 
management plan to the APCO for review and approval in advance of the proposed burn 
project, containing at a minimum all the information shown above for the less than 1 acre 
or 1 ton burns, and the following additional information: 

a. Identification of meteorological conditions necessary for burning.

b. The smoke management criteria the land manager or his/her designee will use
for making burn ignition decisions.

c. Projections, including a map, of where the smoke from burns are expected to
travel, both day and night.

d. Specific contingency actions (such as fire suppression or containment) that will
be taken if smoke impacts occur or meteorological conditions deviate from
those specified in the smoke management plan.

e. An evaluation of alternatives to burning considered; if an analysis of
alternatives has been prepared as part of the environmental documentation
required for the burn project pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA) or the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), as applicable,
the analysis shall be attached to the smoke management plan in satisfaction of
this requirement.

f. Public notification procedures and methods.

g. PM10 emissions from burn projects are limited to 42 tons within the Owens
Valley non- attainment area (See Figure 1) in accordance with the State
Implementation Plan (SIP) and to the General Conformity provisions of District

Deleted: the 

Deleted: can be found in

Deleted:  and is discussed below

Deleted: For burn projects greater than 250 acres and for 
any burn from which the APCO determines that there has 
been a significant smoke impact, the land manager or 
his/her designee shall also perform a post-burn smoke 
management evaluation.¶

Deleted: Discussion of p

Deleted: 10 tons within the Mono Basin non-attainment 
area and to 42 tons within the Owens Valley

Deleted: for each area 

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 51 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 
Regulation XIII. 

For burn projects greater than 250 acres and for any burn from which the APCO determines 
that there has been a significant smoke impact, the land manager or his/her designee shall 
also perform a post-burn smoke management evaluation. 

 If Smoke May Impact Sensitive Areas:

If smoke may impact smoke sensitive areas, the land manager, or his/her designee, shall 
include in the smoke management plan; visual monitoring, ambient particulate matter 
monitoring or other monitoring approved by the district, as required by the APCO for the 
following burn projects: 

a. Projects greater than 250 acres;

b. Projects that will continue burning or producing smoke overnight;

c. Projects conducted near smoke sensitive areas; or

d. As otherwise required by the Air Pollution Control Officer.

 For Multi-Day Burns:

For multi-day burns which may impact smoke sensitive areas, the land manager or his/her 
designee, shall provide daily notification to the District and California Air Resources 
Board (CARB) to affirm that the burn project remains within the conditions specified in 
the smoke management plan, or whether contingency actions are necessary. 

 For Unplanned or Naturally-Ignition Fires:

For unplanned or naturally-ignited wildland fire managed for resource benefits that are 
expected to exceed 10 acres in size, the land manager or his/her designee, shall submit a 
smoke management plan to the District for review and approval within 72 hours of the 
start of a fire.  

In addition to the required components, smoke management plans for unplanned or 
naturally-ignited wildland fire managed for resource benefits shall should include: 

 Incorporation of air quality management considerations in fire management
documents and decisions. 

 Adaptive management based on forecasted and monitored smoke concentrations
to match emissions to dispersion opportunities. The District may require limiting 
or postpone ignitions to avoid cumulative smoke impacts, prevent public 
nuisance and prevent exceedance of the state or federal air quality standards. 

 Public notification and messaging methods.

 Additional mitigation measures as appropriate.

Per Title 17, for any unplanned or natural ignition that occurs on a no-burn day, the 
initial “go/no-go” decision to manage the fire for resource benefit will be a “no-go” 
unless: 

a. After consultation with the district, the district decides, for smoke
management purposes, that the burn can be managed for resource benefit; or

Deleted: Accidental 

Deleted:  
Deleted: any accidental

Deleted: F
Deleted: accidental 

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 52 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 
b. For periods of less than 24 hours, a reasonable effort has been made to

contact the District, or if the District is not available, CARB; 

c. After 24 hours, the District has been contacted, or if the District is not
available, the CARB has been contacted and concurs that the burn can be 
managed for resource benefit. 

d. A “no-go” decision does not necessarily mean that the fire must be
extinguished, but that the fire cannot be considered as a prescribed fire. 

3.1 Permissive Burn Days 

“Permissive-burn days”, “marginal burn days” and “no burn days” for open outdoor burning will be 
determined by CARB for the Great Basin Valleys Air Basin, which includes; Inyo, Mono and Alpine 
Counties. A permissive burn day will be declared when the following criteria area met: 

a. Near 4:00 a.m., the mean 500 mb height over the Great Basin Valleys Air
Basin is less than the limiting mean height given in the Table 1.

b. The expected 4:00 p.m. mean 500 mb height over the Great Basin Valleys Air
Basin is less than the limiting mean height given in the Table 1.

Table 1. Limiting Mean 500-Millibar Heights by Month 

Month Mean 500-mb 
Height (meters)

January 5750 
February 5740 
March 5740 
April 5760 
May 5800 
June 5850 
July 5880 
August 5880 
September 5870 
October 5850 
November 5810 
December 5780 

3.2 No Burn Days for High Fire Hazard Conditions 

Federal, State or local fire protection agencies in Inyo, Mono, or Alpine Counties may 
prohibit burning on days when weather and/or fuel moisture conditions create a potential 
wildfire risk. The CARB burn day determinations are not intended to permit open 
burning on days when such burning is prohibited by public fire protection agencies for 
purposes of fire control or prevention. In this case, “no burn” day determinations 
declared by fire protection agencies over-rides permissive burn day determinations made 
by the CARB.  

3.3 Permissive Burn Day Forecasts 

The CARB shall specify each day of the year as a permissive burn day or a no-burn day 

Deleted: the California Air Resources Board (

Deleted: )

Deleted: The determinations are broadcast daily through 
the local radio stations and can be confirmed by calling the 
Owens Valley Interagency Control Center (dispatch) at 
(760) 873-2405.¶

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 53 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 
for each air basin. Burn day decisions will be provided by CARB for the following day 
by 3:00 p.m. every day.  

Forty-eight (48), 72 and 96-hour burn day forecasts can be obtained  on request from the 
CARB Meteorology Section . A 2 or 3 day forecast should be obtained from CARB for 
any prescribed burn that will involve significant resources and would cause a hardship if 
the burn were cancelled due to the no burn day status. Although the Air Pollution 
Control Officer may issue a special permit to conduct a prescribed burn on a “no burn” 
day as declared by the CARB, the permittee will be required to show good cause for 
granting the special permit, and the amount of material allowed to be burned may be 
limited by the APCO (see Attachment E and Rule 411.B.2). 

3.4 Daily Burn Authorization 

In order to minimize smoke impacts on smoke sensitive areas, avoid cumulative smoke 
impacts, and prevent public nuisance, the amount of prescribed burning may be limited 
on a daily basis or postponed if the APCO determines that air quality is expected to 
exceed State or federal air quality standards on the day of a proposed burn. The District 
will issue daily burn authorizations at least 24-hours prior to the burn, however, this 
authorization may be contingent upon, or subject to change,  based on CARB burn day 
decisions, air quality conditions, meteorological conditions, or other conditions affecting 
smoke dispersion. 

The land manager or his/her designee shall contact the District at least 3 days prior to 
any anticipated prescribed burn for burn projects that will be greater than 1 acre in area 
or emit more than 1 ton of PM-10 to receive a District daily burn authorization.  

The APCO may limit the amount of material to be burned, or require the postponement 
of a prescribed burn, considering the following factors: 

a. Air quality conditions including forecasted, modelled and monitored conditions
with consideration given to  state and federal ambient air quality standards and
District air pollution episode criteria;

b. Meteorological conditions expected during burning, including wind speeds and
directions at the surface and aloft, and atmospheric stability;

c. Types and amounts of materials to be burned;

d. Location and timing of materials to be burned;

e. Locations of smoke sensitive areas; and

f. Smoke from all burning activities, including other burns with the District or
burning in neighboring air districts or regions which may affect the district
or region.

4.0 District Smoke Management Program Tracking and Enforcement 

For all agricultural and prescribed burns requiring a smoke management plan, the District 
will maintain records including the location, type of burn and estimated tonnage and/or 
acreage burned  An annual prescribed burning report summarizing the burn activities and 
the amount of material treated will be submitted to CARB within 45 days of the end of 

Deleted: The ARB will provide a daily voice message that 
will be updated at 3:00 PM to declare the burn day status 
for the following day in the Great Basin Valleys Air Basin. 
This voice message can be obtained by calling (916) 445-
0745.¶

Deleted: by calling

Deleted: at (916) 322-6014

Deleted:  and by submitting a request on the form in 
Attachment D.

Deleted: is 

Deleted: if
Deleted: , or air quality are different from those that were 
anticipated.¶

Deleted: office by calling (760) 872-8211, 

Deleted: If a wildfire or an approved burn project is
within 25 miles of another approved burn project and is 
planned for the same day, t…

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 54 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 
each calendar year as required by Title 17. 

Land managers, fire protection personnel or the public may contact the APCO, Deputy 
APCO or the smoke management program coordinator at the District office (760) 872- 
8211 if there are any questions regarding the smoke management program or burn day 
authorizations. The APCO, DAPCO, and two Air Quality Specialists will be responsible 
for enforcement of all District regulations related to open outdoor fires and prescribed 
burning. Notices of violation issued for open outdoor fires or prescribed burning will be 
treated and settled in the same manner as all other District regulations. 

5.0 Cross Jurisdictional Smoke Impacts 

The District will communicate and coordinate with surrounding air districts and 
jurisdictions regarding cross-jurisdictional smoke impacts. For burns occurring outside the 
District’s jurisdiction, District staff will maintain regular communication with surrounding 
air districts and jurisdictions to ensure the District and public are notified of burns that may 
impact the district and to ensure the potential impacts to the District are considered in 
decision making. Additionally, if smoke from a project with District boundaries may 
impact other jurisdictions, District staff shall notify the appropriate air quality agency as 
soon as practical and prior to ignition.   

Deleted: inspectors 

Deleted: The Smoke Management Program coordinator 
will ensure that the State of Nevada Department of 
Environmental Protection are advised of any prescribed 
burns that take place within 50 miles of Nevada. The 
program coordinator will also track prescribed burns and 
wildfires in the Sequoia, Kings Canyon and Yosemite 
National Parks, the Mountain Counties, Tahoe, Mojave 
Desert, and the San Joaquin Valley air basins. Fire tracking 
will be done by FAX and internet access to the Park Service 
and Forest Service fire websites.  If requested, other 
agencies or the public will be advised of prescribed burns 
that take place in the District. An annual prescribed burning 
report summarizing the burn activities and the amount of 
material treated will be submitted to ARB at the end of each 
year.¶

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 55 of 77



Smoke Management Program Adopted November 2001, Revised XX, XXXX 

Figure 1.  Map of Great Basin Unified  Air Pollution Control District Deleted: APCD

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 56 of 77



GBUAPCD – Rule 411 
Page 1 of 4 
XX/XX/XX 

Deleted: 11/07/01

RULE 411. WILDLAND VEGETATION MANAGEMENT BURNING IN WILDLAND AND 
WILDLAND/URBAN INTERFACE AREAS 

Adopted: 09/05/74 Revised:  03/10/76, 07/01/92, 11/07/01, XX/XX/XX 

A. No wildland vegetation management burning may be done without first having obtained 
a permit from the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection or other 
designated agency having jurisdiction over the proposed burn locations.  The form of this 
permit shall contain the following words or words of similar import: 'This permit is valid 
only on those days during which agricultural burning is not prohibited by the State Air 
Resources Board or by the Air Pollution Control Officer pursuant to Section 41855 of the 
Health and Safety Code.' 

B. No person shall conduct wildland vegetation management burning on "no burn" days as 
announced daily by the State Air Resources Board for the Inyo, Mono and Alpine 
Counties or when such burning is prohibited by the Air Pollution Control Officer except 
when the Air Pollution Control Officer has authorized, by special permit pursuant to 
Section 80120, California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 17, agricultural burning on 
days designated by the State Air Resources Board as no-burn days because the denial 
of such permit would threaten imminent and substantial economic loss. In authorizing 
such burning the Air Pollution Control Officer shall limit the amount of acreage which can 
be burned in any one day and only authorize burning when downwind populated areas 
are forecasted by the State Air Resources Board to achieve the ambient air quality 
standards. Every applicant for a permit to burn agricultural waste pursuant to this 
section shall provide information in writing to the Air Pollution Control Officer for 
evaluation, stating why the denial of such a permit would threaten imminent and 
substantial economic loss. 

C. Wildland vegetation management burning, when permitted, shall conform to the 
following criteria: 

1. The land manager, or his/her designee, shall annually or seasonally submit a
potential list of burn projects to the Air Pollution Control Officer, including areas
considered for potential naturally-ignited wildland fires managed for resource
benefits, with updates as they occur.

2. For burn projects greater than 1 acre in size or estimated to produce more than 1
ton of particulate matter, the land manager, or his/her designee, shall submit a
smoke management plan to the Air Pollution Control Officer for review and
approval at least 30 days in advance of the proposed burn project, containing at
a minimum, the following information:

a. Location, types, and amounts of material to be burned;

b. Expected duration of the fire from ignition to extinction;

c. Identification of responsible personnel, including contact information ;

d. Identification and location of all smoke sensitive areas; and

Deleted: telephone contacts

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 57 of 77



GBUAPCD – Rule 411 
Page 2 of 4 
XX/XX/XX 

Deleted: 11/07/01

e. procedures for public notification and education, including messaging,
appropriate signage at burn sites, and for reporting of public smoke
complaints.

3. For burn projects greater than 100 acres in size or estimated to produce more
than 10 tons of particulate matter contain, at a minimum, the land manager, or
his/her designee, shall submit a smoke management plan to the Air Pollution
Control Officer for review and approval at least 30 days in advance of the
proposed burn project, containing all the information in subsection 2 and the
following additional information:

a. Identification of meteorological conditions necessary for burning.

b. The smoke management criteria the land manager or his/her designee
will use for making burn ignition decisions.

c. Projections, including a map, of where the smoke from burns are
expected to travel, both day and night.

d. Specific mitigations and contingency actions (such as fire suppression
or containment) that will be taken when identified thresholds or
management action points occur or meteorological conditions deviate
from those specified in the smoke management plan.

e. An evaluation of alternatives to burning considered; if an analysis of
a l ternat ives has been prepared as part of the environmental
documentation required for the burn project pursuant to the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) or the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA), as applicable, the analysis shall be attached to the smoke
management plan in satisfaction of this requirement.

f. Public notification procedures.

4. If smoke may impact smoke sensitive areas, the land manager, or his/her
designee, shall include in the smoke management plan; publ ic outreach
and messaging, smoke forecasting, visual monitoring, ambient
particulate matter monitoring or other monitoring or mit igat ion approved
by the district, as required by the Air Pollution Control Officer for the
following burn projects:

a. Projects greater than 250 acres;

b. Projects that will continue burning or producing smoke overnight;

c. Projects conducted near smoke sensitive areas; or

d. As otherwise required by the Air Pollution Control Officer.

5. For multi-day burns which may impact smoke sensitive areas, the land manager
or his/her designee, shall provide daily notification to the District and the CARB to
affirm that the burn project remains within the conditions specified in the smoke

Deleted: if smoke impacts

Deleted: Discussion of p

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 58 of 77



GBUAPCD – Rule 411 
Page 3 of 4 
XX/XX/XX 

Deleted: 11/07/01

management plan, or whether contingency actions are necessary. 

6. For any natural ignition that occurs on a no-burn day, the initial “go/no-go”
decision to manage the fire for resource benefit will be a “no-go” unless:

a. After consultation with the district, the district decides, for smoke
management purposes, that the burn can be managed for resource
benefit; or

b. For periods of less than 24 hours, a reasonable effort has been made to
contact the district, or if the district is not available, the ARB;

c. After 24 hours, the District has been contacted, or if the District is not
available, the ARB has been contacted and concurs that the burn can be
managed for resource benefit.

A “no-go” decision does not necessarily mean that the fire must be extinguished, 
but that the fire cannot be considered as a prescribed fire. 

7. For any naturally-ignited wildland fire managed for resource benefits that are
expected to exceed 10 acres in size, the land manager or his/her designee, shall
submit a smoke management plan to the District for review and approval within
72 hours of the start of a fire.

8. The land manager or his/her designee, shall ensure that all conditions and
requirements stated in the smoke management plan are met on the day of the
burn event and prior to ignition.

9. For burn projects greater than 250 acres, the land manager or his/her designee
shall perform a post-burn smoke management evaluation.

10. Vegetation shall be in a condition that will minimize the smoke emitted during
combustion when feasible, considering fire safety and other factors.

11. Material to be burned shall be piled where possible, unless good silvicultural
practices or ecological goals dictate otherwise.

12. Piled material to be burned shall be prepared so that it will burn with a minimum
of smoke.

13. The burn plan applicant shall file with the District a statement from the
Department of Fish and Game certifying that the burn is desirable and proper if
the burn is to be done primarily for improvement of land for wildlife and game
habitat. The Department of Fish and Game may specify the amount of brush
treatment required, along with any other conditions it deems appropriate.

14. Burn plans shall limit or postpone burning, or require mitigation, when the
meteorological conditions a n d  s m o k e  i m p a c t s  m a y  cause or
contribute to an exceedance of a state or federal ambient air quality standard
or cause a public nuisance.

Deleted: could otherwise

Deleted: smoke to create

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 59 of 77



GBUAPCD – Rule 411 
Page 4 of 4 
XX/XX/XX 

Deleted: 11/07/01

15. Vegetation to be burned shall be free of tires, rubbish, tar paper or construction
debris, and reasonably free of dirt and soil.

16. The material to be burned shall be ignited only by devices approved by the
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection, or the local fire protection
agency, and ignition shall be as rapid as practicable within applicable fire control
restrictions.

17. .

18. All burning shall conform to the applicable jurisdictional fire code(s).

19. Burning shall be managed to minimize smoke impacts to populated areas..

D. The total amount of material burned in any one day, may be limited or postponed by the 
District, taking into consideration matters which would affect the ambient air quality of the 
District including current and forecasted air quality conditions; meteorological conditions; 
the location and timing of material to be burned; the types and amounts of material to be 
burned; the location of smoke sensitive areas; and the cumulative smoke impacts from all 
burning activities within and outside the District. 

[Intentionally left blank.] 

Deleted: Prescribed burning shall not be allowed 
on Sundays, the last Saturday in April, or legal 
holidays, except for multi-day burns that cannot 
be reasonably treated on other days…

Deleted:  curtailed when smoke is drifting into a 
populated area or creating a public nuisance…

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 60 of 77



Public Safety Power Shutdowns and Emergency Generators (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 5 – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514‐3537 

Tel: 760‐872‐8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 

BOARD REPORT 

Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020 

To: District Governing Board 

From: Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 
Ann Logan, Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer 

Subject: Public Safety Power Shutdowns and Emergency Generators 

At the November 2019 District Governing Board Meeting, District staff presented on the public 
outreach efforts regarding District permit requirement for Emergency Generators due to the increased 
frequency and duration of power outages due to Public Safety Power Shutdowns. At the request of 
the Board, District staff has reviewed the District’s permitting and fees associated with Emergency 
Generators and performed an evaluation of fee waiver for emergency engines.  

The State of California sets the emission standards for all stationary source diesel engines including 
emergency engines (California Code of Regulations Section 93115 Airborne Toxic Control Measure 
for Stationary Compression Ignition Engines) that are 50 brake horsepower (bhp) or larger. Most 
emergency backup generators necessary for business and residential uses are below the thresholds for 
permitting. Typical home generators run between 3000 and 6500 watts, less than 10 bhp and are 
exempt from permitting. Generators for non-residential uses can vary greatly, however most non-
industrial backup generators would not require District permitting. For large power needs, businesses 
also have the option of utilizing engines that use other fuel types. Gasoline or propane emergency 
generators are exempt from permitting except for large engines over 900 bhp (670 kilowatts), 
significantly higher than most businesses would require.  

The District currently has over 150 engines permitted with 125 permitted as emergency backup 
engines. The primary use of emergency engines is to serve as the backup power for ski lifts (40% of 
the permits) followed by backup generators for cell service towers (16%). Other emergency engines 
permittees include but are not limited to geothermal plants, the Federal Aviation Administration, fish 
hatcheries, the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, the military, hospitals, and fire 
protection districts. The District’s current fee schedule applicable to all engines, prime and 
emergency, is shown below in Table 1 and is based on the design fuel consumption on the engine. 
Per District rules, fees are currently waived for emergency back-up diesel engines less than 350 brake 
horsepower operated by local fire districts, local law enforcement, and local hospitals. There 
currently are several permits issued to hospitals for backup engines that are larger than 350 bhp that 
are not fee exempt. 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 61 of 77



Public Safety Power Shutdowns and Emergency Generators (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 5 – Page 2 

Table 1. District Rule 301- Fee Schedule 2- Fuel Burning Equipment Schedule 

1000 British Thermal Units Per Hour 
Authority to Construct

Initial Permit Fee 
Annual Permit 
Renewal Fee 

Up to and including 150 $             70.00 $ 80.00 

Greater than 150 but less than 400 $           135.00 $             157.00 

400 or greater but less than 650 $           275.00 $             320.00 

650 or greater but less than 1,500 $           695.00 $             805.00 

1,500 or greater but less than 5,000 $        1,100.00 $             1,273.00 

5,000 or greater but less than 15,000 $        1,455.00 $             1,687.00 

15,000 or greater but less than 50,000 $        1,850.00 $             2,144.00 

50,000 or greater but less than 100,000 $        2,645.00 $             3,064.00 

100,000 or greater but less than 200,000 $        3,795.00 $             4,394.00 

200,000 or greater $        5,060.00 $              5,861.00 

* Diesel engines consume 7,000 btu/hp-hr on an average

Lastly, the District has no knowledge of the District fee schedule prohibiting the permitting of an 
emergency backup generator to an agency, business, or individual and thus District staff has not 
identified any need for fee waivers for permitting emergency engines. However, District staff has 
identified a need for an updated review of the District fee schedules. It is District’s staff intention to 
prepare an updated fee analysis of all District fee schedules, including consideration of a separate fee 
schedule for emergency backup engines as emergency engines are currently assessed the same fees 
schedule as prime engines and engines used for non-emergency uses. Additional consideration in the 
fee analysis can be given to raising the horsepower fee exemption limit for fire districts, law 
enforcement and hospitals. The updated fee analysis may be utilized to determine if the District 
Board should consider revisions to the District rules regarding fees.  

Board Action: 
None. Informational only. 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 62 of 77



Owens Lake Phase 9/10 Dust Control Update (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 6 – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 

BOARD REPORT 

Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020 

To:                District Governing Board 

From: Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 

Subject: Owens Lake Phase 9/10 Dust Control Update 

Summary: 
On May 10, 2018, the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District (District) Governing 
Board approved the 2018 Owens Valley Planning Area Reasonable Further Progress Report (RFP).  
The RFP detailed the 2016 Owens Valley Planning Area State Implementation Plan (2016 SIP) 
Phase 9/10 December 31, 2017 construction completion milestone.  Areas designated as Best 
Available Control Measure (BACM) Managed Vegetation had an additional two years, until 
December 31, 2019, to achieve full vegetation cover performance criteria compliance 
requirements.  This report provides the Governing Board an update on the City of Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power’s (City) progress to meet required BACM Managed Vegetation 
dust control area performance criteria. 

The Phase 9/10 dust control project footprint is approximately 3 square-miles of the 47.8 square-
mile total dust control area (Attachment 1).  Of the three types of BACM utilized by the City, the 
BACM Managed Vegetation areas encompass 46.2 acres in T2-1b and 101.3 acres in T2-1c.  All 
these areas are required to reach compliance by the December 31, 2019 regulatory deadline except 
for 11.02 acres within the T2-1c dust control area which the City filed a motion with the 
Sacramento Superior Court in March 2018 for relief from their dust control obligations, under the 
force majeure provisions of the 2014 Stipulated Judgment..  Following denial of the City’s motion, 
dust controls are now implemented for this area as specified in the City’s T2-1c Compliance Plan 
approved by the District on May 8, 2019.  The Compliance Plan details project goals, milestones, 
irrigation schedules, seeding and planting activities, contingency measures if goals are not 
achieved, commitments to monitoring, progress reports, and the possibility of implementing 
alternate gravel cover after 5 years if necessary.  In accordance with the Compliance Plan, the first 
quarterly progress report was timely submitted and indicates good seed germination progress in 
targeted areas.  For the remainder of T2-1b and T2-1c, the City provided an update on August 12, 
2019, describing upcoming plans to comply with vegetation cover requirements by December 31, 
2019.  The major challenges have been soil salinity in T2-1b and wind erosion in T2-1c.  On their 
own initiative, several remedial actions have been performed by the City to overcome these 
obstacles.  These include accelerated soil reclamation via drainage improvement implementation, 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 
 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 63 of 77



Owens Lake Phase 9/10 Dust Control Update (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 6 – Page 2 

runoff flood control, topsoil addition, installation of an automated system that activates sprinkler 
irrigation during high wind events, supplemental seeding, saltgrass plug planting, shrub planting, 
plant fertilization, and implementation of a large-scale transplanting effort.  The large-scale 
planting effort is summarized in steps 1-3 below: 

Step 1 - Utilize a tractor with a sod harvester to gather and roll excess vegetation from areas on 
Owens Lake.  

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 64 of 77



Owens Lake Phase 9/10 Dust Control Update (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 6 – Page 3 

Step 2 – Haul the rolls across Owens Lake and transplant in desired Phase 9/10 areas. 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 65 of 77



Owens Lake Phase 9/10 Dust Control Update (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 6 – Page 4 

Step 3 – Place sod to achieve desired vegetation cover. 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 66 of 77



Owens Lake Phase 9/10 Dust Control Update (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 6 – Page 5 

Within a month of transplantation this past fall, two indicators of success were observed 

1) Root Growth 2) Emergent Shoots

The fieldwork and satellite image collection necessary to conduct the formal verification of 
vegetative cover of the Phase 9/10 Managed Vegetation BACM was completed in December 2019 
as described in the 2016 State Implementation Plan, District Governing Board Order #160413-01, 
and District Rule 433. The District expects to have vegetation cover analysis results available this 
spring.  For the City, finding solutions to deal with vegetation cover challenges has resulted in 
substantial vegetation cover enhancement that will assist the City in making progress toward dust 
control compliance requirements.   

Board Action:  
None.  Informational only. 

Attachment: 
1. Map – Phase 9/10 Dust Control Areas

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 67 of 77



Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District

Owens Lake Phase 9/10 Dust Control Areas 

T2-1d

T10-3a

T21-1

T21-2

T15

T22

T20

T32-2

T35-3

T2-1b
(46.2 acres)

T2-1c
(101.3 acres)

T10-1a

T37-2a

T37-2b

T37-2c

T37-2d

LA
Aq

ued
uc

t

¬«136

¬«190

£¤395

405000

405000

410000

410000

415000

415000

420000

420000

425000

425000

40
20

00
0

40
20

00
0

40
25

00
0

40
25

00
0

40
30

00
0

40
30

00
0

40
35

00
0

40
35

00
0

40
40

00
0

40
40

00
0

40
45

00
0

40
45

00
0

 12/12/2019 9:25:47 AM Phase 9_10 overview 20191211.mxd

 3600' Shoreline

LA Aqueduct

Pre-Phase 9/10 Dust Control Areas

Phase 9/10 BACM types
Gravel

Managed Vegetation

Shallow Flood

0 1 2
Miles

É

UTM:

U
TM

:

Total Dust Control:
47.8 sq mi

Agenda Item No. 6 - Attachment 1200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 68 of 77



Consider Appointing One Person to the Alternate Position on the District Hearing Board (Action) 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 7 – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514‐3537 

Tel: 760‐872‐8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 

BOARD REPORT 

Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020 

To: District Governing Board 

From: Tori DeHaven, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Consider Appointing One Person to the Alternate Position on the District Hearing Board 

Summary:  
The District has three arms with different functions: the Governing Board, the Hearing Board and the 
Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO).  The Hearing Board is a quasi-judicial body that hears appeals 
from decisions of the APCO and grants temporary variances from District Rules and Regulations. 
The District’s five-member Hearing Board is appointed by the Governing Board as provided by 
California Health & Safety Code Section 40800. Hearing Board members serve three-year terms and 
consists of members from all three District counties. The five current members of the Hearing Board 
are: Mr. Peter Pumphrey (Mono County), Ms. Betty Hylton (Mono County), Mr. Michael Ahles 
(Inyo County), Mr. John Dukes (Inyo County) and Mr. Tom Sweeney (Alpine County).  

California Health & Safety Code Section 40800 also provides that the District Governing Board may 
also appoint an alternate for each member. The Board Clerk has advertised for prospective alternate 
Hearing Board members throughout the District’s three counties. We received a letter of interest from 
the following person: Mr. John Connolly 

Fiscal Impact:  
Board members are paid a stipend of $100 per meeting attended as well as mileage. 

Board Action: 
Staff recommends the Board consider and appoint one interested person to one alternate position for 
the District’s five-member Hearing Board. 

Attachment:   
1. Letter of Interest and Resume for Mr. John Connolly

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 69 of 77



Agenda Item No. 7 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 70 of 77



Agenda Item No. 7 - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 71 of 77



Informational Items (No Action) – Travel Report 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 8a – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 

BOARD REPORT 

Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020 

To:              Governing Board 

From: Tori DeHaven, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Travel Report 

Summary: 
Susan Cash 11/19 – 11/22 California Public Employers Labor Monterey, CA 

Relations Association Annual Training 
Conference 

Patty Gilpin 12/4 – 12/6 How to Use QuickBooks Seminar Bakersfield, CA 

Ann Logan 12/18 – 12/19 California Air Resources Board/ Santa Barbara, CA 
California Air Pollution Control Officer’s 
Association Prescribed Fire Smoke  
Management Training 

Board Action: 
None.  Informational only. 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 72 of 77



Informational Items (No Action) – 2020 Governing Board Regular Meeting Schedule 
January 9, 2020 – Agenda Item No. 8b – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 

BOARD REPORT 

Mtg. Date: January 9, 2020 

To: District Governing Board 

From: Tori DeHaven, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: 2020 Governing Board Regular Meeting Schedule 

Summary: 
Staff thought it helpful to the Governing Board (Board) and the public to provide the regular meeting 
schedule for 2020, which will remain in effect pending any cancellations, special meetings etc. 
Attached is the 2020 Regular meeting schedule as well as Resolution 2018-03 which was adopted by 
the Board on July 12, 2018.  

Board Action: 
None. Information only. 

Attachment:  
1. Governing Board Regular Meeting Schedule for 2020
2. Resolution 2018-03

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 73 of 77



Regular MeeƟngs of the GBUAPCD Governing Board  
1st Thursday of odd Months 
Adopted July 12, 2018 

2020 

Great Basin Unified APCD 
157 Short Street 
Bishop, CA 93514 
760.872.8211 
www.gbuapcd.org 

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL
s m t w t f s 

 1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31 

  s m t w t f s 
 1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

s m t w t f s 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31

  s m t w t f s 
 1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30

MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST
s m t w t f s 

 1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31 

  s m t w t f s 
1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 

s m t w t f s 
1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31

  s m t w t f s 
  1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
s m t w t f s 

1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 

  s m t w t f s 
1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

s m t w t f s 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30

  s m t w t f s 
1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31

Agenda Item No. 8b - Attachment 1

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 74 of 77



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-03 

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 
OF THE GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
SETIING THE TIME AND PLACE FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 54951, the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution 
Control District is deemed a local agency for purposes of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the California Public Records 
Act, and the Political Reform Act of 1974; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 54952, the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution 
Control District Governing Board is deemed a legislative body for purposes of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the 
California Public Records Act, and the Political Reform Act of 1974; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954, the Great Basin Unified Air 
Pollution Control District Governing Board is required to set forth by ordinance, resolution, bylaw, or by 
whatever other rule is required for the conduct of business by this body, a time and place for holding regular 
meetings; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954, the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution 
Control District Governing Board is permitted to set regular and special meetings within the boundaries of the 
territory over which Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District exercises jurisdiction. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing 
Board as follows: 

1. Regular Meetings shall be held on the first Thursday of every odd month at 10:00 AM. 

2. Meetings shall be held in the following locations: 

a. Alpine County Board of Supervisors Chambers, located at 99 Water Street, Markleeville, 
CA 96120. 

b. Mono County Board of Supervisors Chamber (2nd Floor), located at Mono County 
Courthouse, 278 Main Street (U.S. Highway 395) Bridgeport, CA 93517. 

c. Inyo County Board of Supervisors Chambers, located at 224 N. Edwards Street, 
Independence, CA 93526. 

d. Town of Mammoth Lakes Council Chambers, located at 437 Old Mammoth Road Suite z, 
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546. 

e. City of Bishop Council Chambers, located at 377 West Line Street Bishop, California 
93514. 

f. City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Administrative Building Training 
Room 134A, located at 111 Sulfate Road Keeler, California 93530. 

g. Any other location within the jurisdiction of the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control 
District as deemed necessary by the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District 
Governing Board. 

3. All regular meeting agendas shall be noticed by the Clerk of the Board no less than 72 hours prior to 
regular meetings on the public bulletin board at the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control 
District Office located at 157 Short Street Bishop, California 93514-3537, at the actual location of 
the meeting, and on the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District website. 

Agenda Item No. 8b - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 75 of 77



FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing 
Board that a notice of cancellation shall be posted in the same manner as the agenda for regular meetings in 
the event that there is no business to conduct; and 

FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing 
Board that special meetings shall be called in the event that an issue requires immediate action; and 

FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing 
Board that any regularly scheduled meeting may be adjourned to an alternate time and place specified in the 
order of adjournment. The Clerk of the Board shall cause to be posted a copy of the order or notice of 
adjournment on the public bulletin board at the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Office 
located at 157 Short Street Bishop, California 93514-3537, on or near the door of the place where the regular, 
adjourned regular, special or adjourned special meeting was held, at the actual location of the meeting, and 
on the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District website within 24 hours after the time of the 
adjournment. The notice shall specify the other location of the meeting and time thereof. 

AYES: Board Members - Griffith, Hames, Wentworth, Peters 

NOES: 0 

ABSENT: Board Members - Corless, Stump, Kingsley, Totheroh 

ABSTAIN: 0 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ALPINE 

Tori DeHaven, the Clerk of the Governing Board of the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District, hereby 
certifies that the above foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by said District at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 121h day of July, 2018, and passed by a 4/0 vote of said Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and seal this July 12, 2018. 

~ ufe'14.c 
Clerk of the Governing Board 

Agenda Item No. 8b - Attachment 2

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 76 of 77



 

Air Pollution Control Officer Report (No Action) 
January 9, 2020 - Agenda Item No. 10 - Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 

BOARD REPORT 

Mtg. Date: November 7, 2019 

To: District Governing Board 

From: Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 

Subject: Air Pollution Control Officer Report 

A verbal report will be given at the meeting. 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

200109 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 77 of 77


	6.0 Owens Lake Phase 9-10 Update.pdf
	Board Report




